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HARRISBURG, PA - On Wednesday, October 9, 2024, the Judicial Conduct Board filed a Petition 
for Relief for Interim Suspension Without Pay in the Court of Judicial Discipline against York 
County Common Pleas Court Judge Steven D. Stambaugh pending final disposition of criminal 
charges filed against him.  The Board took this action after charges were filed against Judge 
Stambaugh in the U.S. District Court, Middle District of Pennsylvania.  As to the pending criminal 
charges, Judge Stambaugh enjoys the presumption of innocence unless and until he is convicted. 
 
The Petition for Relief for Interim Suspension Without Pay accompanies this press release.  The 
document is also available on the Board’s website at www.jcbpa.org  (select the Resource Tab 
then select Press Releases in the drop-down menu). 
 
Court filings for all cases prosecuted by the Board are available on the Court of Judicial Discipline 
website at http://www.pacourts.us/courts/court-of-judicial-discipline. 
 
Counsel: 
 
Representing the Judicial Conduct Board:  James P. Kleman, Jr., Deputy Chief Counsel  
   
Representing Judge Steven D. Stambaugh:  To Be Determined 
 
Contact:  Melissa L. Norton, Chief Counsel 
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Judge Steven D. Stambaugh : m

Court of Common Pleas
l9 Judical District : 3 JD 2024

York County

PETITION FOR RELIEF FOR INTERIM SUSPENSION WITHOUT PAY

AND NOW, this gth day of October, 2024, comes the Judicial Conduct Board of

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Board), by and through undersigned counsel, and

files this Petition For Relief For Interim Suspension Without Pay pursuant to Rule 701

of the Court of Judicial Discipline Rules of Procedure, and in support thereof, avers the

following:

1. The Pennsylvania Constitution provides this Court with the authority to impose

interim suspension as follows:

Prior to a hearing, the court may issue an interim

order directing suspension, with or without pay, of any

justice, judge or justice of the peace against whom formal

charges have been filed with the court by the board or

against whom has been filed an indictment or information

charging a felony. An interim order under this paragraph

shall not be considered a final order from which an appeal

may be taken.

Pa. Const, Art. V, § 18(d)(2).

2. From apDroximately January 3, 2022, until the present, Judge Steven D.

Stambaugh, served continuously as a duly elected judge of the Court of

Common Pleas of the 1gth Judicial District, York County.

3. On October 8, 2024, a federal grand jury indicted Judge Stambaugh with the



following federal criminal offenses: (1) wire fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (26

counts); (2) mail fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341 (2 counts); (3) witness tampering, 18

U.S.C. § 1512(b)(1) (1 Count); (4) obstruction of justice, 18 U.S.C. § 1503 (1

count). See Attachment A (October 8, 2024 indictment, U.S. v. Steven

Stambaugh, 1:24-cr-00275).

4. These offenses constitute felonies under title 18 U.S.C. § 3559.

5. The allegations supporting the felony charges pending against Judge Stambaugh

undermine both public confidence in the judiciary and its reputation. If Judge

Stambaugh is permitted to continue participating in cases before the 19th

Judicial District during the pendency of these charges, the public’s confidence in

the judiciary will continue to erode.

WHEREFORE, it is respectfully requested that this Honorable Court immediately

enter an interim order suspending Judge Stambaugh without pay based on the felony

indictment returned against him and to grant such other relief as may be deemed

appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

Melissa L. Norton
Counsel

DATE: October 9, 2024 BY:

_______________________________

Jies P. Kleman, Jr’
I5eputy Chief Counsel
Pa. Supreme Court ID No. 87637
Judicial Conduct Board
Pennsylvania Judicial Center
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 3500
P.O. Box 62525
Harrisburg, PA 17106
(717) 234-7911
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COURT OF JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE

IN RE:

Judge Steven D. Stambaugh
Court of common Pleas
1gth Judicial District 3 JD 2024

York County

VERIFICATION

I, James P. Kleman, Jr., Deputy Chief Counsel to the Judicial Conduct Board,

verify that the facts set forth in the foregoing petition are true and correct to the best

of my knowledge, information, and belief. I understand that the statements made in

this petition are subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S.A. § 4904, regarding unsworn

falsification to authorities.

DATE: October 9, 2024 By:
i&c’es P. Kleman, Jr.
LYeputy Chief Counsel
Pa. Supreme Court ID No. 87637
Judicial Conduct Board
Pennsylvania Judicial Center
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 3500
P.O. Box 62525
Harrisburg, PA 17106
(717) 234-7911



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COURT OF JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE

IN RE:

Judge Steven D. Stambaugh
Court of Common Pleas
1gth Judicial District : 3 JD 2024
York County

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I certify that this filing complies with the provisions of the Case Records Public

Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System that require filing confidential information

and documents differently than non-confidential information and documents.

Submitted by: Judicial Conduct Board of Pennsylvania

S q nature: $ut

Name: James P. Kleman, Jr.
Deputy Chief Counsel

Attorney No: 87637
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COURT OF JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE

IN RE:

Judge Steven D. Stambaugh
Court of Common Pleas
19th Judicial District : 3 JD 2024

York County

PROOF OF SERVICE

In compliance with Rule 122 of the Court of judicial Discipline Rules of

Procedure, on October 9, 2024, a copy of the Board’s foregoing Petition was delivered

to Judge Stambaugh by personal service at his home address.

Respectfully submitted,

DATE: October 9, 2024

_____________ ______________

J4Ties P. Kleman, Jr. 6’
Deputy Chief Counsel
Pa. Supreme Court ID No. 87637
Judicial Conduct Board
Pennsylvania judicial Center
601 Commonwealth Avenue, Suite 3500
P.O. Box 62525
Harrisburg, PA 17106
(717) 234-7911
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

STEVEN STAMBAUGH,

No. /rJ75

Defendant

THE GRAND JURY

INI)ICTMENT

CHARGES:

COUNTS 1 THROUGH 26
18 U.S.C. § 1343

PER

RILED
SCRANTON

(Wire Fraud)

At times material to the Indictment:

I. Introduction

A. Relevant Individuals and Entities

1. Defendant STEVEN STA1’VIBAUGH was a resident of York,

Pennsylvania, within the Middle District of Pennsylvania. STEVEN

STAMBAUGH was an attorney, and was the owner and operator of

Stambaugh Law, P.C.

2. Stambaugh Law, P.C. was a law firm located in York,

Pennsylvania, withth the Middle District of Pennsylvania.

1
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3. Employee #1, Employee #2, Employee #3, and Employee #4

were employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C., and resided in the Middle

District of Pennsylvania.

B. çj1omepQpmpensaticnjEenefits

4. The federal and state unemployment insurance system,

created by the Social Security Act of 1935, was designed to provide

unemployment insurance benefits, commonly referred to as

unemployment compensation, to persons out of work through no fault of

their own. Each state administers a separate unemployment

insurance program, funded by both federal and state taxes.

5. Beginning in or around March 2020, in response to the

COVID-19 pandemic, several federal programs expanded

unemployment insurance eligibility and increased unemployment

insurance benefits, including the Federal Pandemic Unemployment

Compensation (FPUC) program. FPUC provided eligible individuals

with $600 per week, in addition to the weekly benefit amount they

received from other unemployment compensation programs.

2
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6. In the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Pennsylvania

Department of Labor & Industry (PA Dept. of L&I), headquartered in

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, within the Middle District of Pennsylvania,

operated and administered the unemployment compensation program,

including by receiving and reviewing applications for unemployment

compensation benefits, including FPUC payments. The Pennsylvania

State TreaèFy Depa±tment, headquartered in Harrisburg,

Pennsylvania, within the Middle District of Pennsylvania, administered

the payment of benefits under the unemployment compensation

program.

7. In general, claimants were eligible for unemployment

compensation benefits if they were able and available for work, and

were either unemployed or underemployed. Unemployment

compensation was not available to individuals who were not able and

availabl tO *ork.

8. Claimants were required to report all work and gross

earnings for which they had been paid or would be paid for the week in

which the work occurred or the gross earnings were realized, regardless

3
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of when the claimants were paid. After filing an initial claim for

unemployment compensation benefits, and to maintain those benefits,

claimants were required to certify eligibility on a biweeldy basis, in

which they reported all work and gross earnings for each week they

were claiming unemployment compensation. Both the initial

application and the bi-weekly certifications were submitted to PA Dept.

of L&I over the internet and interstate wires. Failure to report all

work and gross earnings could disqualify a claimant from receiving

benefits for the claimed weeks.

9. Unemployment compensation benefits authorized for

payment by the PA Dept. of L&I were disbursed by the Pennsylvania

State Treasury Department in the form of a debit card mailed to

claimants, or by direct deposit into a claimant’s bank account through

the use of interstate wires. The Pennsylvania State Treasury

Department used U.S. Bank, located in Minneapolis, Minnesota, to

disburse the unemployment compensation benefits, and sent

authorizations for the disbursement of unemployment compensation

benefits to U.S. Bank through the internet and interstate wires.

e
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II. Object of the Scheme to Defraud

10. The object of the scheme was for STEVEN STAI’vIBATJGH to

unjustly enrich himself by using government funds to pay the

employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. during the COVID19 pandemic.

III. Statutory Allegation

11. From in or about March 19. 2020, to in or about May 18,

2020, in York County, within the Middle District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere, the defendant,

STEVEN STAMBAUGH,

with the intent to defraud, knowingly devised and intended to devise a

scheme and artifice to defraud the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and

to obtain money and property by means of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises.

12. For the purpose of executing, advancing, furthering, and

carrying out the scheme and artifice to defraud, and attempting to do

so, the defendant knowingly transmitted and caused others to transmit

by means of wire communication in interstate commerce the following

5
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writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, with each being a

separate coirnt

Unemployment compensation application for

Employee #1, submitted by the internet and

________

interstate wires to the PA Dept. of L&I

Unemployment compensation application for

Employee #2, submitted by the internet and

interstate wires to the
Unemployment compensation application for

Employee #3, submitted by the internet and

___

of L &I

____ __

Unemployment compensation application for

Employee #4, submitted by the internet and

interstate wires to the PA Dept. of L&1

Apprate
Date of Wire

Count

1

2

Description

March 25, 2020

March 25, 2020

3 March 25, 2020

4 Marc;i 29, 2020

5 Marci 27,2020 Authorization from the PA State Treasury

Department to issue unemployment benefits for

‘ Employee #1, submitted by the internet and

interstate_wires

6 March 26, 2020 Authorization from the PA State Treasury

Department to issue unemployment benefits for

Employee #2, submitted by the internet and

interstate wires

7 March 27, 2020 Authorization from the PA State Treasury

Department to issue unemployment benefits for

Employee #3, submitted by the internet and

interstate wires

8 April 7, 2020 Authorization from the PA State Treasury

Department to issue unemployment benefits for

Employee #4, submitted by the internet and

interstate wires

6
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9 April 1, 2020 Certification for Employee #1, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I

10 April 1, 2020 Certification for Employee #2, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I

11 April 1, 2020 Certification for Employee #3, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I

12 April 2, 2020 Certification for Employee #4, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

[______
L&I

[ 13 April 12, 2020 Certification for Employee #1, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I
Certification for Employee #2, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I

15 April 14, 2020 Certification for Employee #3, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&J

16 April 12, 2020 Certification for Employee #4, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I
17 April 26, 2020 Certification for Employee #1, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of
, L&I____

18 April 26, 2020 Certification for Employee #2, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I_________________

19 April 26, 2020 Certification for Employee #3, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of

L&I

7
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20 April 26, 2020 { Certification for Employee #4, submitted by the

internet and interstate wires to the PA Dept. of
I L&I

________ ____ ____
____

21 April 2,2020 ransfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

4Members 1st Federal Credit Union —

22 April 14, 2020 Transfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

_______ ________________

Members 1st Federal Credit Union -

23 April.15,:2020 Transfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

_______

Members 1st Federal Credit Union

_____ ____

24 April 18, 2020 Transfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

____

Members 1st Federal Credit Union

25 April 28, 2020 Transfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

____ _____

Members 1st Federal Credit Union

_____

26 May 2, 2020 Transfer of unemployment compensation benefits

from U.S. Bank to Employee #2’s account at

_____________ _____

Members 1st Federal Credit Union

-

IV. Manner and Means of the Scheme to Defraud

The scheme to defraud was accomplished, in part, by the following

manner and means:

13. It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH notified and caused another to

notifr the employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. that they were

8
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temporarily laid off, on or about March 20, 2020.

14. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAIvIBAUGH instructed and caused others to

instruct the employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. to file applications for

unemployment compensation benefits with the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania.

15. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH directed, and caused others to

direct, the c:mployees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. to continue working for

Stambaugh Law, P.C., while they were ostensibly laid off.

16. it was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that -

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH provided and caused others to

provide equipment and assistance to the employees of Stambaugh Law,

P.C., to telework while they were ostensibly laid off.

17. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAA’IBAUGH offered and caused another to offer

employees supplemental income from Stambaugh Law, P.C., for hours

worked while ostensibly laid off and collecting unemployment benefits,

9
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to account for the difference between the employees’ salaries and the

benefits they received through unemployment compensation.

18. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH instructed and caused others to

instruct employees to manually track the hours they worked while

ostensibly laid off, in anticipation of future satisfaction of the offer of

supplemental income.

19. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud, and

to conceal the scheme and artifice to defraud, that defendant STEVEN

STAJVIBATJGH instructed and caused another to instruct employees of

Stambaugh Law, P.C. not to record the hours they worked while

ostensibly laid off, in their ordinary time-tracking software program

Timeclocks.

20. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH caused employees of Stambaugh

Law, P.C., to apply for unemployment compensation benefits from the

PA Dept. of L&I, despite those employees continuing to work at

Stambaugh Law, P.C. while ostensibly laid off, and therefore being

10
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ineligible to receive such benefits.

21. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH caused employees of Stambaugh

Law, P.C. to represent falsely in unemployment compensation

applications tothe PA Dept. of L&I that the last day they worked was

on or about March 19, 2020, and March 20, 2020, when in fact the

employees continued to work for Stambaugh Law, P.C. thereafter.

22. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH caused employees of Stambaugh

Law, P.C. to represent falsely in biweekly certifications to the PA Dept.

of L&I that they did not work in the preceding weeks and were

available for work, when in fact the employees continued to work for

Stainbaugh Law, P.C., and thus were not available for work.

23. :[t was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH caused employees of Stambaugh

Law, P.C. to receive unemployment compensation benefits, including

FPUC payments, sent in the mail, from U.S. Bank located in the state

of Minnesota, to employees located in the Middle District of

-Ii-
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Pennsylvania.

24. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH submitted and caused another to

submit Employer’s Notice of Application and Separation forms (a UC45

Form) fjotfitambauh Law, P.C. to the PA Dept. of L&I, that

represented falsely that employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. last worked

on March 19, 2020, when in fact the employees continued to work for

Stambaugh Law, P.C. after March 19, 2020, and that omitted from the

Employer’s Notice of Application and Separation forms the true dates

on which employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C. last worked.

25. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that

defendant STEVEN STAMBAUGH omitted and caused another to omit

hours thid\vóeks wbrked by employees of Stambaugh Law, P.C., while

they were laid off, from information provided to the PA Dept. of L&I,

including in quarterly wage reports.

26. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud, and

to conceal the scheme and artifice to defraud, that defendant STEVEN

STAIMBAUC-H instructed and caused others to instruct employees to

12
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conceal their presence at Stambaugh Law, P.C. when working while

ostensibly laid off and collecting unemployment compensation benefits.

27. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud, and

to conceal the scheme and artifice to defraud, that defendant STEVEN

STAMBAUGIT suggsted to Employee #1 that Employee #1 lie to the

PA Dept. of L&I about working for Stambaugh Law, P.C., while

ostensibly laid off and collecting unemployment compensation benefits.

28. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud, and

to conceal the scheme and artifice to defraud, that defendant STEVEN

ST.AJVIBAUGH required employees to confirm, in writing, that he did

not direct them to work at Stambaugh Law, P.C., while ostensibly laid

off and collecting unemployment compensation benefits, when in fact he

did.

29. [t was further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud, and

to conceal the scheme and artifice to defraud, that defendant STEVEN

STAMBAUGH represented and caused another to represent in

applications for Payment Protection Program loans and loan forgiveness

that Stambaugh Law, P.C. had ten employees and seven employees in

13
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or about April 2020, and omitted information that employees of

Stambaugh Law, P.C. were ostensibly laid off in March 2020.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

14
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:

COUNTS 27 AN)) 28
18 U.S.C. § 1341

(Mail Fraud)

30. The factual allegations in paragraphs 1 through 10, and 13

through 29 are incorporated here.

31. From hi or about March 19, 2020, to in or about May 18,

2020, in York County, within the Middle District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere, the defendant,

STEVEN STAMBAUGH,

with the intent to defraud, knowingly devised a scheme and artifice to

defraud the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and to obtain money and

property by materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,

and promises.

32. For the purpose of executing, advancing, furthering, and

carrying out the scheme and artifice to defraud, and attempting to do

so, the defendant knowingly caused to be delivered by a private and

commercial interstate carrier, according to the direction thereon and at

the place at which it was directed to be delivered by the person to whom

ID
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it was addressed, and caused to be taken and received from an

authorized depository for mail, the following matters, with each being a

separate count:

Count Approximate
Date of Mailing

Description

March 29, 2020

March 28, 2020

Debit card mailed from U.S. Bank, located in

Minnesota, to Employee #1, located in the Middle

District of Pennsylvania

______—

Debit card mailed from U.S. Bank, located in

Minnesota, to Employee #3, located in the Middle

Districffennsvlvania

________ ________

27

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341.
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:

COUNT 29
18 U.S.C. 1512(b)U)
(Witness Tampering)

33 ::ip or about April 2021, in the Middle District of

Pennsylvania, the defendant,

STEVEN STAMBAUGH,

did knowingly attempt to intimidate and corruptly persuade Employee

#4, by stating to Employee #4 that if Employee #4 was questioned by

federal investigators, Fmployee #4 should lie to those investigators by

stating that. any work performed while ostensibly laid off was voluntary,

and that STEVEN STAMBAUGH did not require Employee #4 to work

while collecting unemployment, with the intent to influence the

testimony of Employee #4 in an official proceeding, namely, Employee

#4’s anticipated testimony before a federal grand jury.

In violation ofTitle 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(1).

17



iUOU J-.C•t-L,I ti ‘JC%i Ivil_ly,

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES;

COUNT 30
18 US.C. § 1512(b)(3)
(Witness Tampering)

34. lxi or about April 2021, in the Middle District of

Pennsylvania, the defendant,

STEVEN STAIVBAUGH,

did knowingly attempt to intimidate and corruptly persuade Employee

#4, by stating to Employee #4 that if Employee #4 was questioned by

federal investigators, Employee #4 should lie to those investigators by

stating thai any work performed while ostensibly laid off was voluntary,

and that STEVEN STAMBAUGH did not require Employee #4 to work

while co1lectih unemployment, with the intent to hinder, delay, and

prevent the communication to special agents of the Department of

Labor, Office of the Inspector General, and the Federal Bureau of

Investigation, all law enforcement officers, of information relating to the

commission and possible commission of a federal offense, namely,

unemployment compensation fraud.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(3).

18
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:

COUNT 31
18 U.S.C. § 1503

(Obstruction of Justice)

35. Befween on or about March 30, 2021 and November 15,

2022, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the defendant,

STEVEN STAMBAUGH,

corruptly influenced, obstructed and impeded, and endeavored to

influence, obstruct and impede the due administration of justice in a

federal grand jury in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, including by:

a. in or about April 2021, stating to Employee #4 that if

Employee #4 was questioned by federal investigators,

Employee #4 should lie to those investigators by stating that

any work performed while ostensibly laid off was voluntary,

and that STEVEN STAMBAUGH did not require Employee

#4 to work while collecting unemployment;

b. Between in or about April 2021 and November 2022,

including after STEVEN STAMBAUGH commenced service

as a judicial officer for the Pennsylvania Court of Common

19
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Pleas for York County, urging Employee #4 to “back him up”

and follow his instructions during the federal investigation of

his conduct;

c. Between in or about April 2021 and November 2022,

including after STEVEN STAMBAUGH commenced service

as a judicial officer for the Pennsylvania Court of Common

Pleas for York County, intimidating Employee #4 by stating

that STEVEN STAMBAUGH would retaliate against

Employee #1 for allegedly reporting his conduct to federal

authorities;

d. On or about November 14, 2022, in the course of STEVEN

STAMBAUGH’s service as a judicial officer for the

Pennsylvania Court of Common Pleas for York County,

requesting that Employee #4 meet with him in advance of

Employee #4’s grand jury testimony on November 16, 2022,

to ensure that STEVEN STAMBAUGH and Employee #4

were “on the same page.”

20
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e. On or about November 17, 2022, in the course of STEVEN

STAMBAUGH’s service as a judicial officer for the

Pennsylvania Court of Common Pleas for York County,

instructing Employee #4 to divulge to STEVEN

STAMBAUGH the substance of Employee #4’s grand jury

testimony, and any evidence collected by federal

investigators that was presented during that testimony.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503.

GERARD M. KARAM
United States Attorney

A TRUE BILL

‘22?i
MICHELLE c OLSHEFgS4
SEAN A. CAMONI
Assistant United States Attorneys

Date

4
FOREPERSON

21




